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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR #j(OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Quarter Ended February 23, 2014 or
[ 1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dy ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:

For the Transition period from to
Commission file numbef-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 94-302561¢€
(State or other jurisdiction « (IRS Employel
incorporation or organizatiol Identification Number

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € tiled all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange A
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for suarteh period that the registrant was required @ duch reports), and (2) has been subije
such filing requirements for at least the past &gsd

Yes _X No___
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant knésntted electronically and posted on its corpoktEbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te &b of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 tm®or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post sue)il

Yes _X No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant igrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-aexelerated filer or a smaller report
company. See definition of “large accelerated fiterd “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingngpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer_X
Non Accelerated Filer Smaller Reporting Company _

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brgfe Act).
Yes ____ No__ X

As of March 21, 2014, there were 26,780,273 shafr€&mmon Stock outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

February 23, 2014 May 26, 2013

(Unaudited) (1)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,987 $ 13,71¢
Marketable securities — 1,54t
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfebaats of $357 and $583 at February 23, 2014 a
May 26, 2013, respectively 41,04: 36,07:
Accounts receivable, related party 18¢ 671
Income taxes receivable 4,21¢ 5,10:
Inventories, net 25,66¢ 24,11
Deferred taxes 1,771 1,582
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,05¢ 2,85¢
Total Current Assets 88,92¢ 85,66(
Investment in non-public company, non-fair value 798 798
Investment in non-public company, fair value 37,70( 29,60(
Property and equipment, net 70,97: 65,81
Goodwill, net 49,62( 49,62(
Trademarks/tradenames, net 48,42¢ 48,42¢
Customer relationships, net 8,94: 9,60¢
Other assets 1,39¢ 1,42¢
Total Assets $ 306,78. $ 290,94:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 29,62 $ 31,47(
Accounts payable, related party 10¢ 78€
Accrued compensation 4,20¢F 4,98¢
Other accrued liabilities 4,437 2,33
Deferred revenue 1,67¢ 1,24¢
Lines of credit — 4,00(
Current portion of long-term debt 6,017 5,93¢
Total Current Liabilities 46,06 50,75
Long-term debt, less current portion 29,76 34,37
Deferred taxes 29,52¢ 24,05¢
Other non-current liabilities 1,78¢ 1,34¢
Total Liabilities 107,14« 110,52¢
Total Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shartb®rzed; 26,780,273 and 26,402,247 shares
issued and outstanding at February 23, 2014 and2da2013, respectively 27 26
Additional paid-in capital 130,98( 126,25¢
Retained earnings 67,01z 52,40¢
Total Stockholders’ Equity 198,01¢ 178,69:
Non controlling interest 1,61¢ 1,721
Total Equity 199,63 180,41
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 306,78: $ 290,94:

(1) Derived from audited financial statements.
See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

February 23, February 24, February 23, February 24,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenues:

Product sales $ 126,02¢ $ 117,58: $ 354,50¢ $ 332,97"

Services revenue, related party 35C 28¢ 1,37¢ 1,61¢
Total revenues 126,37¢ 117,86° 355,88: 334,59!
Cost of revenue:

Cost of product sales 105,96: 100,09( 308,28: 283,46

Cost of services revenue 263 26¢ 1,18 1,404
Total cost of revenue 106,22« 100,35¢ 309,46: 284,86"
Gross profit 20,15t 17,50¢ 46,42 49,73(
Operating costs and expenses:

Research and development 1,72 2,32¢ 5,56¢ 6,647

Selling, general and administrative 8,70(C 8,52¢ 25,96¢ 26,26¢

Change in value of contingent consideration — — — (3,93
Total operating costs and expenses 10,422 10,84¢ 31,53; 28,97¢
Operating income 9,73¢ 6,65¢ 14,88¢ 20,75¢
Dividend income 281 281 844 844
Interest income 78 46 18:< 104
Interest expense (390 (487) (1,257) (1,52¢)
Other income 40C 1,04 8,10( 6,28¢
Net income before taxe 10,10: 7,54¢ 22,75¢ 26,46¢
Income tax expense (3,679 (2,759 (8,02¢) (8,23%)
Consolidated net income 6,42z 4,792 14,72¢ 18,221
Non controlling interes (22 3 (229 (159
Net income and comprehensive income applicabletengon stockholder $ 6,400 $ 478¢ $ 14,60: $ 18,06¢
Basic net income per share $ 024 $ 0.1¢ 058 § 0.7¢
Diluted net income per share $ 024 $ 0.1¢ $ 054 $ 0.6¢
Shares used in per share computation
Basic 26,69: 25,83¢ 26,574 25,75:
Diluted 27,12« 26,66 27,09: 26,49

See acc ompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigenl by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Deferred taxes
Earn out liability

Change in investment in non-public company (fairketivalue)

Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, related party
Income taxes receivable
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accounts payable, related party
Accrued compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchase of marketable securities
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from lines of credit
Payments on lines of credit
Decrease in other assets
Payments to minority interest holders
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aetviti
Change in value of contingent consideration

See accompanying notes
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Nine Months Ended
February 23, 2014 February 24, 2013

$ 14,72¢ $ 18,22°
5,36¢ 5,527
99z 1,13t
(1,909 (2,749
33C 18C
5,28¢ 4,23(
— (3,939
(8,100 (6,300)
(4,969 (5,319
482 11
2,79¢ 2,79(
(1,55 (379
(209) (3,620
(1,849) 5,09¢
(677) (58F)
147 131
2,541 (2,56
42¢ 1,58¢
13,83 13,47t
(10,199 (4,539
(1,417 (5,239
2,96: 1,44¢
(8,647 (8,329
2,147 1,38¢
(1,252 (49)
1,90¢ 2,74¢
— (9,650)
(4,529 (4,476
3,50( —
(7,500) (7,666
29 652
(226) (320
(5,919 (17,38)
(73) (12,239
13,71¢ 22,17;
$ 12,98, $ 9,94¢
$ — 8 3,93:




LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentatiomd Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landedche “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aiddifferentiated products for food and
biomaterials markets and license technology apihies to partners. The Company has two proprigtatymer technology platforms: 1) Intelimer®
polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA”) biopolymers. TBempany sells specialty packaged branded Eat 8naad GreenLine® and private label fresh-cut
vegetables and whole produce to retailers, clutestand foodservice operators, primarily in thetéthiStates, Canada and Asia through its Apio, Inc.
(“Apio”) subsidiary and sells HA-based biomateritiisough its Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“LifecoreSubsidiary. The Company’s HA biopolymers are
proprietary in that they are specially formulated$pecific customers to meet strict regulatoryumegments. The Company’s polymer technologies,glon
with its customer relationships and trade namesttar foundation, and a key differentiating advgetapon which Landec has built its business.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantaéments of Landec have been prepared in accardeitit accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States for interim finanifdrmation and with the instructions for Form @QGand Article 10 of Regulation S-X. In the opinioh
management, all adjustments (consisting of nore@lmring accruals) have been made which are negdssaresent fairly the financial position at
February 23, 2014 and the results of operationscas flows for all periods presented. Althoughdembelieves that the disclosures in these finhncia
statements are adequate to make the informaticepted not misleading, certain information normadttuded in financial statements and related
footnotes prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the United State® teeen condensed or omitted in accordance with the
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exch&@mmmission. The accompanying financial data shbelreviewed in conjunction with the audited
financial statements and accompanying notes indlidéandec's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tieedil year ended May 26, 2013.

The results of operations for the nine months eredtuary 23, 2014 are not necessarily indicatitb@results that may be expected for an
entire fiscal year because there is some seaspimahipio’s food business, particularly, Apio’s Fb&xport business and the order patterns of Lisor
customers which may lead to significant fluctuasiam Landec’s quarterly results of operations.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presamtede accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWsS. generally accepted accounting
principles and include the accounts of Landec Cagan and its subsidiaries, Apio and Lifecore. ilhterial inter-company transactions and balances
have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaiocevariable interest entities (“VIES"). A
company is required to consolidate the assetdlifiad and operations of a VIE if it is determingrbe the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationhyf design: a) the total equity investment at isskot sufficient to permit the entity to finands i
activities without additional subordinated finan@apport provided by any parties, including eqtityders or b) as a group the holders of the equity
investment at risk lack any one of the followingeia characteristics: (i) the power, through votights or similar rights to direct the activitiebam entity
that most significantly impact the entity’s econormperformance, (ii) the obligation to absorb thpexted losses of the entity, or (iii) the rightéceive
the expected residual returns of the entity. Then@any reviewed the consolidation guidance and caled that its partnership interest in Apio Cooling
and its equity investments in non-public compaailesnot VIEs.




Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make certain
estimates and judgments that affect the amountstezpin the financial statements and accompanyiritgs. The accounting estimates that require
management’s most significant and subjective judgmmclude revenue recognition; sales returnsaiipdances; recognition and measurement of
current and deferred income tax assets and liasilithe assessment of recoverability of long-ligedets; the valuation of intangible assets anehiovy;
the valuation of investments; the self-insuranability; and the valuation and recognition of stdidsed compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxfaletors and require management to make judgm&hesanalysis of historical and future
trends can require extended periods of time tdvesand is subject to change from period to peridee actual results may differ from management’s
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshithree months or less from date of purchase tanityaas cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
consist mainly of certificate of deposits (CDs),map market funds and U.S. Treasuries. The markeé\a cash equivalents approximates their hisab
cost given their short-term nature.

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsaha FDIC insured and single A or better rateghomte and municipal bonds with original
maturities of more than three months at the dapriothase regardless of the maturity date. The @ognplassifies all debt securities with readily
determined market values as “available for salég aggregate amount of CDs included in marketaddardies at February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013
was zero and $701,000, respectively. The contrhotaturities of the Company’s marketable securitieg are due in less than one year represented zer
and $1.3 million of its marketable securities afebruary 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013, respectividlg. contractual maturities of the Company’s
marketable securities that are due in one to tvemsyeepresented zero and $251,000 of its markesablgrities as of February 23, 2014 and May 263201
respectively. Investments in marketable securéfescarried at fair market value with unrealizethg@nd losses reported as other income. The €ost o
debt securities is adjusted for amortization ohitens and discounts to maturity. This amortizatorecorded to interest income. Realized gains and
losses on the sale of available-for-sale securdiesalso recorded to interest income. During ltheet and nine months ended February 23, 2014 and
February 24, 2013, the Company did not sell anyketable securities. The cost of securities solshised on the specific identification method.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are primartdynposed of marketable securities, commercial-tesohet payables, grower advances, notes
receivable and debt instruments. For short-terimunsents, the historical carrying amount approxemsahe fair value of the instrument. The fair vadfie
long-term debt and lines of credit approximates tberrying value. Fair values for long-term fingddnstruments not readily marketable are estichate
based upon discounted future cash flows at prenggaifiarket interest rates. Based on these assurapti@nagement believes the fair market valueseof th
Company'’s financial instruments are not materidifferent from their recorded amounts as of Felyr@®, 2014 and May 26, 2013.

Investments in Non-Public Companies

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences @atjpn (“Aesthetic Sciences”), which is reportedaa investment in non-public company,
non-fair value, in the accompanying ConsolidatethBee Sheets, is carried at cost and adjustednfosirment losses. Since there is no readily aviailab
market value information, the Company periodicadlyiews this investment to determine if any ottemttemporary declines in value have occurred |
on the financial stability and viability of AestlieBciences.

On February 15, 2011, the Company made an invesim&¥indset Holdings 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corfiora(“Windset”), which is reported

as an investment in non-public company, fair vainghe accompanying Consolidated Balance SheeifReabruary 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013. The
Company has elected to account for its investmel¢indset under the fair value option (see Note 4).
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Change in Depreciable Lives of Property and Equipnmet

In accordance with its policy, the Company revi¢inesestimated useful lives of its fixed assetsmopragoing basis. This review primarily
indicated that the actual lives of certain buildirrqnd machinery and equipment at its processinlifizewere longer than the estimated useful livesd
for depreciation purposes in the Companfjhancial statements. As a result, effective Nioer 25, 2013, the Company changed its estimatéeafsefL
lives of its buildings and machinery and equipnteritetter reflect the estimated periods during Wilieese assets will remain in service. The Comany’
buildings that previously averaged 29 years weceeimsed to an average of 35 years. The Companykingay and equipment that previously averaged 7
years were increased to an average of 11 yearsefldw of this change in estimate for the threethe ended February 23, 2014 was to decrease
depreciation expense by $438,000, increase netiadry $284,000, and increase basic and dilutedremrper share by $0.01.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets are comprisedsibmer relationships with a finite estimated uséfalof twelve to thirteen years and
trademarks, trade names and goodwill with indeditiites.

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed forgilale impairment whenever events or changes imgistances occur that indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset (or asset group) mapececoverable. Indefinite lived intangible assee reviewed for impairment at least annuatly, i
accordance with accounting guidance. For non-gdbihwiefinite-lived intangible assets, the Compagyforms a qualitative analysis in accordance with
ASC 350-30-35. For goodwill, the Company perforntgiantitative analysis in accordance with ASC 38eB3.

During the fiscal quarter ended February 23, 2@l Company voluntarily changed the date of itsuahgoodwill and indefinitdived intangible
assets impairment testing from the last day ofit@al month in July to the first day of the fiséalrth quarter. This voluntary change is prefezabider
the circumstances as it provides the Company vdtfitianal time to complete its annual goodwill @ndefinite-lived intangible asset impairment tegtin
in advance of its year-end reporting and resultseiter alignment with the Company’s strategic plag and forecasting process. The voluntary chamge
accounting principle related to the annual testiage will not delay, accelerate, or avoid an impaint charge. This change is not applied retrospsyti
as it is impracticable to do so because retrosgeefplication would require application of sigoéint estimates and assumptions with the use o§ight
Accordingly, the change will be applied prospediive

Partial Self-Insurance on Employee Health Plan

The Company provides health insurance benefitigible employees under a séifsured plan whereby the Company pays actual miedaians
subject to certain stop loss limits. The Comparprés self-insurance liabilities based on actuaihas filed and an estimate of those claims incubnetd
not reported. Any projection of losses concernlrgg@ompany's liability is subject to a high degvéeariability. Among the causes of this varialyildre
unpredictable external factors such as inflatidagachanges in severity, benefit level changesjgakcosts, and claims settlement patterns. Tifs s
insurance liability is included in accrued liahéi and represents management's best estimate afrtbunts that have not been paid as of February 23
2014. It is reasonably possible that the expers€tdmpany ultimately incurs could differ and adjusits to future reserves may be necessary.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company uses fair value measurement accouiatiffitpancial assets and liabilities and for finehénstruments and certain other items

measured at fair value. The Company has electefithealue option for its investment in a non-galdompany (see Note 4). The Company has not
elected the fair value option for any of its otkégible financial assets or liabilities.
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The accounting guidance established a thimenierarchy for fair value measurements, whidbntizes the inputs used in measuring fair vads
follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted prmesiéntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aatiekets that are observable either directly oiré@utly through corroboration with observable
market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ttelibr no market data, which would require the Campto develop its own assumptions.

As of February 23, 2014, the Company held certasets and liabilities that are required to be nreakat fair value on a recurring basis,
including marketable securities, interest rate seagha minority interest investment in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s marketable se@siis determined based on observable inputs tbatadily available in public markets or can
be derived from information available in publiclyaied markets. Therefore, the Company has categbitiz marketable securities as a Level 1
measurement.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate sigagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market, including yield
curves, and is categorized as a Level 2 measurement

The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The caltiola of fair value utilizes significant
unobservable inputs in the discounted cash flowatsdhcluding projected cash flows, growth rated discount rates. As a result, the Company’s
investment in Windset is considered to be a Levekeasurement investment. The change in the faikehaalue of the Company’s investment in Windset
for the three and nine months ended February 213} @@s due to the Compasy20.1% minority interest in the change in the fiaéirket value of Winds:
during those periods. In determining the fair vadfi¢he investment in Windset, the Company utilitesfollowing significant unobservable inputs firet
discounted cash flow models:

At February 23, 2014 At May 26, 2013
Annual consolidated revenue growth rates 4% 3% to 9%
Annual consolidated expense growth rates 3% to 4% 3% to 8%
Consolidated income tax rate 15% 15%
Consolidated discount rates 16% to 22% 18% to 28%

The revenue growth, expense growth and incomeat@xassumptions, consider the Company's best éstohthe trends in those items over
the discount period. The discount rate assumpéikes into account the risk-free rate of return,niaeket equity risk premium and the company’s djgeci
risk premium (collectively the “Discount ratedd then applies an additional discount for lacknafketability of the underlying securities. Theatiunte:
cash flow valuation model used by the Company hagddllowing sensitivity to changes in inputs asdwmptions (in thousands):

Impact on value of Winds

investment as of Februa®B, 201«

10% increase in annual revenue growth rates $ 2,90(
10% increase in annual expense growth rates $ (2,700
10% increase in income tax rates $ (200),
10% increase in discount rate $ (1,600

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market ismain affect the amount of gain or loss recorded frarticular position. The use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine thevéire of certain financial instruments could resuld different estimate of fair value at the rejpar
date.




The following table summarizes the fair value & @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatr&ir value on a recurring basis, as of
February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013 (in thousands):

Fair Value at February 23, 2014 Fair Value at May 26, 2013
Assets: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $ - $ - $ - $ 154 $ - 9 -
Investment in private company - - 37,70( - - 29,60(
Total $ - $ - % 37,70 $ 1,548 $ - $ 29,60(
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap $ - $ 67 $ - $ - $ 165 $ -
Total $ - 9 67 $ - 9 - 9 16 $ =

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the earningess is complete, as evidenced by an agreemédnthegitustomer, transfer of title, and
acceptance, if applicable, as well as fixed pri@nd probable collectability. The Company recondisify allowances, including discounts based on
arrangements with customers, as a reduction todmmtbunts receivable and net revenue.

When a sales arrangement contains multiple elemégrgt€ompany allocates revenue to each elemeatlmasa selling price hierarchy. The
relative selling price for a deliverable is basedts vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOEpvhilable, third-party evidence (TPE), if VSORist
available, or estimated selling price, if neithé@®E nor TPE is available. The Company then recegniegvenue on each deliverable in accordance with
its policies for product and service revenue redagn The Company is not typically able to detemmVSOE or TPE, and therefore, uses estimateag
prices to allocate revenue between the elemeriteeairrangement.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recogmitin delivered elements to the amount that iscootingent on the future delivery of
products or services or future performance obligetior subject to customer-specific cancellatights. The Company evaluates each deliverable in an
arrangement to determine whether they represeataepunits of accounting. A deliverable constiueseparate unit of accounting when it has stand-
alone value, and for an arrangement that includgenaral right of return relative to the delivepedducts or services, delivery or performance ef th
undelivered product or service is considered prigbabd is substantially controlled by the Compdrtye Company considers a deliverable to have stand-
alone value if the product or service is sold safgdy by the Company or another vendor or couldeleld by the customer. Further, the revenue
arrangements generally do not include a general afjreturn relative to the delivered products.aihthe aforementioned criteria for a separateafnit
accounting are not met, the deliverable is combimighl the undelivered element(s) and treated asgiesunit of accounting for the purposes of altoma
of the arrangement consideration and revenue ré@mgnThe Company allocates the total arrangernensideration to each separable element of an
arrangement based upon the relative selling pfieach element. Allocation of the consideratiodésermined at arrangement inception on the basis of
each unit’s relative selling price. In instancesvehthe Company has not established fair valuarigrundelivered element, revenue for all elements i
deferred until delivery of the final element is queted and all recognition criteria are met.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
Unrecognized Tax Benefit

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardaffi("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update20d.3-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhBie&Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lagsa Tax Credit Carryforward EXxists (a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Fo&8)f 2013-11"), which provides that a liability a&¢d to an unrecognized tax benefit would be
offset against a deferred tax asset for a net tipgrimss carryforward, a similar tax loss or a taadit carryforward if such settlement is requiced
expected in the event the uncertain tax positiaisallowed. In situations in which a net operatiogs carryforward, a similar tax loss or a taxddre
carryforward is not available at the reporting datder the tax law of the jurisdiction or the tawlof the jurisdiction does not require, and thétgdoes
not intend to use, the deferred tax asset for puchose, the unrecognized tax benefit will be presein the financial statements as a liability ailtinot
be combined with deferred tax assets. The amendnsbotld be applied prospectively to all unrecogghitax benefits that exist at the effective date.
Retrospective application is permitted. ASU 2013sléffective for fiscal years and interim peridsginning after December 15, 2013, with early
adoption permitted. The Company early adoptederfitist quarter of fiscal year 2014 this standard such adoption did not have a significant imgenct
the Company'’s financial position or results of Gtiems.
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2. Acquisition of GreenLine Holding Cormpany

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DaYeApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ae€nLine Holding Company (“GreenLine”
pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “GiirerRRurchase Agreementt) order to expand its product offerings and eirter new markets such
foodservice. GreenLine, headquartered in Bowlinge@r Ohio, was a privately-held company and idahding processor and marketer of value-added,
fresh-cut green beans in North America. GreenLeeefour processing plants one each in Ohio, Pevewsig, Florida and California and distribution
centers in New York and South Carolina.

The acquisition date fair value of the total coesidion transferred was $66.8 million, which cotesisof the following (in thousands):

Cash $ 62,90(
Contingent consideration 3,93:
Total $ 66,83

The assets and liabilities of GreenLine were reediat their respective estimated fair values dieftlate of the acquisition using generally
accepted accounting principles for business contibima The excess of the purchase price over thedhie of the net identifiable assets acquires! ha
been allocated to goodwill. Goodwill representsilassantial portion of the acquisition proceeds bseaf the workforce in-place at acquisition and
because of GreenLine’s long history and future peots. Management believes that there is furtr@mir potential by extending GreenLine’s product
lines into new channels, such as club stores.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of GreenLing’assets acquired and liabilities assumed anckdetiferred income taxe
effective April 23, 2012, the date the Company woigtd control of GreenLine (in thousands).

Accounts receivable, net $ 7,057
Inventories, net 1,40¢
Property and equipment 11,66¢
Other tangible assets 30¢€
Intangible assets 43,50(
Total identifiable assets acquired 63,94!
Accounts payable and other liabilities (8,399
Deferred taxes (1,875
Total liabilities assumed (10,26¢)
Net identifiable assets acquired 53,67¢
Goodwiill 13,15¢
Net assets acquired $ 66,83:

The Company used a combination of the market astlagproaches to estimate the fair values of tleei@iine assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Intangible Asset

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a discountedfleasitDCF) model, under an income
valuation methodology, based on management’s faa-projections of revenues, gross profits andatjpey profits by fiscal year and assumed a 40%
effective tax rate for each year. Management tatk &account the historical trends of GreenLine taedndustry categories in which GreenLine operates
along with inflationary factors, current economamnditions, new product introductions, cost of sategerating expenses, capital requirements and othe
relevant data when developing its projection. Thenfany believes that the level and timing of cdmivd appropriately reflect market participant
assumptions. The projected cash flows from thesmgjibles were based on key assumptions suchiasagst of revenues and operating profits related to
the intangibles over their respective forecastquyi The resultant cash flows were then discounsed) a rate the Company believes is appropriaengi
the inherent risks associated with each intangibiet and reflect market participant assumptions.
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The Company identified two intangible assets innemtion with the GreenLine acquisition: tradenaames trademarks valued at $36.0 million,
which are considered to be indefinite life assatstherefore, will not be amortized; and custonasebvalued at $7.5 million with a thirteen yearfulse
life. The tradename/trademark intangible assetwahged using the relief from royalty valuation medhand the customer relationship intangible assst w
valued using the distributor method.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oefdin values assigned to the assets acquiredatitities assumed was $13.2 million on the
closing date, which represents the goodwill ameestilting from the acquisition which can be atttélle to GreenLine’s long history, future prospects
and the expected operating synergies from combi@iregnLine with Apio’s fresh-cut, value-added vedp business. None of the goodwill is expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes. The Camypests goodwill for impairment on an annual basisooner, if indicators of impairment are present

3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock peecagreement and two licensing agreements (seeS\Nuiith INCOTEC® Coating and Seed
Technology Companies ("INCOTEC”), a leading providéseed and coating technology products and ss\to the seed industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold ifisyeigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag LEECINCOTEC for $600,000, which resulted
in a gain of $400,000. Under accounting guidaneeahse the stock purchase agreement was entaved the same time the license agreements were
consummated (a multiple element agreement), agooati the gain, or $300,000, has been deferredvdhte recognized as revenue monthly from the
sale date over the seven year life of the Pollin@tos® license agreement (see Note 5). The rengi$il00,000 of the gain was recognized during the
first quarter of fiscal year 2013.

4. Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensingeanent with Aesthetic Sciences for the exclusiyats to use Landec's Intelimer®
materials technology for the development of deriiflats worldwide under the agreement. The Compargived shares of preferred stock in exchange
for the license with a valuation of $1.8 millionegthetic Sciences sold the rights to its Smartfihjéctor System on July 16, 2010. Landec has etedua
its investment in Aesthetic Sciences for impairmatitizing a discounted cash flow analysis undier terms of the purchase agreement. Based on the
terms of the sale, the Company determined thatviestment was other than temporarily impaired thiedefore, recorded an impairment charge of $1.0
million as of May 30, 2010. The Company’s carryirejue of its investment in Aesthetic Sciences 83000 as of February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013.
No additional impairment has been determined fer@bmpan’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelage agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemeitki’)Vindset. Pursuant to the Windset
Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 sergferped shares for $15 million and 201 commoneshéor $201 that were issued by Windset (the
“Purchased Shares”). The Company’s common shapessent a 20.1% interest in Windset. The non-vatengor preferred shares yield a cash dividend
of 7.5% annually. The dividend is payable withind#ys of each anniversary of the execution of thiedéét Purchase Agreement and the first two
dividend payments of $1.1 million were made in N2&@12 and May 2013. The Windset Purchase Agreemehudes a put and call option, which can be
exercised on the sixth anniversary of the Windsetlrase Agreement whereby Apio can exercise theomell its Purchased Shares to Windset, or
Windset can exercise the call to purchase the BaaethShares from Apio, in either case, at a prjoaldo 20.1% of the appreciation in the fair marke
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstinent through the put and call date, plus thelyase price of the Purchased Shddesler the terrr
of the arrangement with Windset, the Company igledtto designate one of five members on the Bo&fldirectors of Windset.
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The investment in Windset does not qualify for gguiethod accounting as the investment does not theeriteria of in-substance common
stock due to returns through the annual divident! flmnon-voting senior preferred shares that aravaitable to the common stock holders. As the put
and call options require the Purchased Shares poitber called in equal proportions, the Company deemed that the investment, in substance, shet
treated as a single security for purposes of adoayuriThe Company has adopted fair value optiathénaccounting for its investment in Windset effext
on the acquisition date. The fair value of the Canyps investment in Windset utilizes significanbbiservable inputs in the discounted cash flow ngdel
including projected cash flows, revenue/expensejroates and discount rates (see Note 1) anctisfitre considered a Level 3 investment for faiue
measurement purposes. The Company believes thatirgpits investment at fair value provides itgeators with useful information on the performance
of the Company’s investment and the anticipatedexggtion in value as Windset expands its business.

The fair value of the Company’s investment in Wetdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash floedel based on projections developed by
Windset, and considers the put and call conversptions. These features impact the duration ot#sh flow utilized to derive the estimated fairueabf
the investment. Assumptions included in the distedicash flow model will be evaluated quarterlydshen Windset's actual and projected operating
results to determine the change in fair value.

During the three and nine months ended Februar@@®B4 and February 24, 2013, the Company recorggd, 800 and $844,000, respectively
dividend income. The increase in the fair markdéa@af the Company’s investment in Windset for ttee months ended February 23, 2014 and
February 24, 2013 was $400,000 and $1.0 millisspeetively, and is included in other income in @@nsolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.
The increase in the fair market value of the Comifsaimvestment in Windset for the nine months enBlebtruary 23, 2014 and February 24, 2013 was
$8.1 million and $6.3 million, respectively, andrsluded in other income in the Consolidated $t&ets of Comprehensive Income.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licegseement with Windset, which was executed in 204®, prior to contemplation of Apio’s
investment in Windset (see Note 5).

5. Collaborative Agreements
INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec enterediséwen-year exclusive technology
license and polymer supply agreement with INCOT&QHe use of Landec’s Intellico@it polymer seedingaechnology for male inbred corn which is
sold under the Pollinator Plus label. This licedses not include the use of Intellicoat for thetoalfed release of an active ingredient for agtietall
applications which was retained by Landec. Landélde the exclusive supplier of Pollinator Pludysoer to INCOTEC during the term of the license
agreement. Landec will receive a royalty equald®2f the revenues realized by INCOTEC from the sélor sublicense of Pollinator Plus coatings
during the first four years of the agreement arfth I6r the last three years of the agreement.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a #a-gxclusive technology license and polymer supghgement with INCOTEC for the joint
development of new polymer and unique coatingsi$erin seed treatment formulations. In this agre¢énhendec will receive a value share which will
mutually agreed to by both parties prior to eagbliagtion being developed.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivenée and research and development agreement wiBréducts and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air

Products”). In accordance with the agreement, Lamdeeives 40% of the direct profit generated ftbmsale of products by Air Products occurringrafte
April 1, 2007, that incorporate Landec’s Intelinmeaterials.
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Chiquita

The agreement with Chiquita has been renewed thrBaegember 2016 and requires Chiquita to pay argroak profit minimums to Landec in
order for Chiquita to maintain its exclusive licerfsr bananas. Under the terms of the agreemeiguitmust notify Landec before Decembet 1 of
each year whether it is going to maintain its esiofel license. Landec was notified in November 26fl€hiquita’s desire to not maintain its exclusive
license. As a result, the agreement has revertachtim-exclusive agreement in which Chiquita wal{yghe Company for membranes purchased and the
Company is now entitled to sell its BreatheWay paikg technology for bananas to others.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieesigreement with Windset to allow for the use aidec’s proprietary breathable packaging to
extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucumlmspers and tomatoes (“Exclusive Products”)cboedance with the agreement, Apio received and
recorded a one-time upfront research and developfeemf $100,000 and will receive license feesabty 3% of net revenue of the Exclusive Products
utilizing the proprietary breathable packaging teshgy, with or without the BreatheWay® trademarke ongoing license fees are subject to annual
minimums of $150,000 for each of the three typesxofusive product as each is added to the agreedeiof February 23, 2014, two products have been
added to the agreement.

6. Stock-Based Compensation

In the three and nine months ended February 23{,26& Company recognized stock-based compensatfsense of $353,000 and $1.0 million,
respectively, which included $222,000 and $576 fod@estricted stock unit awards and $131,000 atib®00 for stock option grants, respectively.

In the three and nine months ended February 248,26& Company recognized stock-based compensatfsense of $464,000 and $1.1 million,
respectively, which included $230,000 and $528 fod@estricted stock unit awards and $234,000 &@r¥®00 for stock option grants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based @raation by income statement line item:

Three Months Nine Months Nine Months

Three Months Ended Ended Ended
EndedFebruan February 24, February 23, February 24,

23, 2014 2013 2014 2013
Research and development $ 14,000 $ 251,000 $ 28,000 $ 465,00(
Sales, general and administrative $ 339,000 $ 213,000 $ 964,000 $ 670,00(
Total stock-based compensation $ 353,000 $ 464,000 $ 992,000 $ 1,135,001

As of February 23, 2014, there was $2.4 milliotiadél unrecognized compensation expense relatedvested equity compensation awards
granted under the Landec equity plans. Total ex@enexpected to be recognized over the weightedage period of 2.1 years for stock options and 2.0
years for restricted stock unit awards.
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7. Diluted Net Income Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation téitgd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Three Months  Three Months Nine Months Nine Months

Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 23, February 24, February 23, February 24,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator:
Net income and comprehensive income applicableanaon
stockholders $ 6,400 $ 4,78¢ $ 14,60! $ 18,06¢
Denominator:
Weighted average shares for basic net income ee sh 26,697 25,83¢ 26,57+ 25,75:
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units 427 82¢ 51¢ 74C
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 27,12« 26,66 27,09: 26,49:
Diluted net income per share $ 02 % 0.1t $ 054 $ 0.6¢

For the three months ended February 23, 2014 amdi&ey 24, 2013, the computation of the dilutedinedme per share excludes the impact of
options to purchase 342,500 shares and 95,527ssbfa@mmon Stock, respectively, as such impactddvoe antidilutive for these periods.

For the nine months ended February 23, 2014 andi&sb24, 2013, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes the impact of
options to purchase 332,037 shares and 88,128ssb@>mmon Stock, respectively, as such impactddvoe antidilutive for these periods.

8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three amemonths ended February 23, 2014 was $3.7 maliiwh$8.0 million, respectively. The
effective tax rate for the nine months ended Fatprad, 2014 was 35% compared to 31% for the samiedsein fiscal year 2013. Although the effective
tax rate for the nine months ended February 234 20ds the same as the statutory federal incomeateyof 35% there were several offsetting factors,
including state taxes, domestic manufacturing ditoiog, non-deductible stock-based compensationrespand the benefit of federal and state research
and development credits.

As of February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013, the Camead unrecognized tax benefits of approximatély $nillion. Included in the balance
unrecognized tax benefits as of February 23, 20@d\ay 26, 2013 is approximately $827,000 and $B107,, respectively, of tax benefits that, if
recognized, would result in an adjustment to thengany’s effective tax rate. The Company does rpeet its unrecognized tax benefits to change
significantly within the next twelve months.

The Company classifies interest and penaltiesa@fit uncertain tax positions as a component qirggision for income taxes. The Company

has accrued an insignificant amount of interestpamilties relating to the income tax on the ungazed tax benefits as of February 23, 2014 and May
26, 2013.
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Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Compangulsject to examination for tax years 1997 forwandU.S. tax purposes. The Company is
subject to examination in various state jurisditsidor tax years 1998 forward, none of which wediiidually material.

9. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market and consisted effibllowing (in thousands):

February 23, 201 May 26, 2012
Finished goods $ 12,35¢ $ 11,29°
Raw materials 10,59( 9,29(
Work in progress 2,72C 3,52¢
Total $ 25,66¢ $ 24,11

10. Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following:

February 23, 2014 May 26, 2013

(in thousands) (in thousands)
Real estate loan agreement with General Electnmt&laCorporation (“GE Capital’)lue in
monthly principal and interest payments of $133,8806ugh May 1, 2022 with intere
based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum $ 16,37 $ 17,06¢
Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in nibnprincipal and interest payments
$175,356 through May 1, 2019 with interest based @ired rate of 4.39% per annur 9,852 11,08(

Term note with BMO Harris Bank N.A. (“BMO Harris"gue in monthly payments of

$250,000 through May 23, 2016 with interest payafdathly at LIBOR plus 2% per

annum 6,75(C 9,00(
Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBsi9sued by Lifecore; due in annual payments thra2@0

with interest at a variable rate set weekly bylibed remarketing agent (0.23% and

0.38% at February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013, réispdg 2,80¢ 3,16(
Total 35,78( 40,30t
Less current portion (6,019 (5,939
Long-term portion $ 29,76: $ 34,37:

In addition to entering into the GE Capital reabés and equipment loans mentioned above, on 28ri2012 in connection with the acquisition
of GreenLine, Apio also entered into a five-ye@5$ million assebased working capital revolving line of credit, kvén interest rate of LIBOR plus 2'
with availability based on the combination of thigible accounts receivable and eligible invent(ayailability was $19.2 million at February 23, 201
Apio’s revolving line of credit has an unused fé®375% per annum. At February 23, 2014 and May2P&3, Apio had zero and $4.0 million,
respectively, outstanding under its revolving laieredit.
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The GE Capital real estate, equipment and lineadditagreements (collectively the “GE Debt Agreata® are secured by liens on all of the
property of Apio and its subsidiaries. The GE D&fteements contain customary events of defaultuwti&h obligations could be accelerated or
increased. The GE Debt Agreements are guarantekdrec and Landec has pledged its equity intémepio as collateral under the agreements. The
GE Debt Agreements contain customary covenants, asitimitations on the ability to (1) incur indetihess or grant liens or negative pledges on Apio’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; (Bjvdends, sell stock or repurchase stock orrateeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in mergéy
enter into sale and leaseback transactions; antgKe changes in Apio’s corporate structure. Iritamg Apio must maintain a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio of not less than 1.10 to 1.0. Apég \m compliance with all financial covenants afelbruary 23, 2014. Unamortized loan originaticesfe
for the GE Debt Agreements were $1.0 million an@$iillion at February 23, 2014 and May 26, 20E3pectively, and are included in other assets in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amortization afi lorigination fees recorded to interest expensthéothree months ended February 23, 2014 and
February 24, 2013 were $47,000 and $45,000, raspbctAmortization of loan origination fees recertito interest expense for the nine months ended
February 23, 2014 and February 24, 2013 were $08&Ad $136,000, respectively.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finaigcagreements with BMO Harris and/or its affiliategllectively (the “Lifecore Loan
Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credit Agreati) which includes (a) a one-year, $10.0 millassetbased working capital revolving li
of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1%85with availability based on the combination ofelciore’s eligible accounts receivable and
inventory balances (availability was $9.4 millianFeebruary 23, 2014) and with no unused fee (atWzelp 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013, no
amounts were outstanding under the line of credit) (b) a $12.0 million term loan which maturegoar years due in monthly payments of
$250,000 with interest payable monthly based oar&ble interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the “Termal”).

2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which BMCOridaaused its affiliate Bank of Montreal to issueirrevocable letter of credit in tl
amount of $3.5 million (th“Letter of Cred”) which is securing the IRB described bel

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Lodgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgpf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such @stioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesg@ant liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’stss
(2) make loans or other investments; (3) pay divitieor repurchase stock or other securities; (fassets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) enter in® aad
leaseback transactions; (7) adopt certain benlefitspand (8) make changes in Lifecore’s corpastitecture. In addition, under the Credit Agreement,
Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimum fixed chargeerage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a minimum quicloraf 1.25 to 1.00, both of which must be satid
as of the end of each fiscal quarter commencinl thi¢ fiscal quarter ending August 26, 2012 anda(linimum tangible net worth of $29,000,000,
measured as of May 26, 2013, and as of the endobf fiscal year thereafter. Lifecore was in comqul@with all financial covenants as of February 23,
2014. Unamortized loan origination fees for thestifre Loan Agreements were $111,000 and $149,086batiary 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013,
respectively, and are included in other assetsdrCionsolidated Balance Sheets. Amortization of tmégination fees recorded to interest expens&dtin
the three months ended February 23, 2014 and Fgt2d4a2013 was $13,000. Amortization of loan aragion fees recorded to interest expense for both
the nine months ended February 23, 2014 and Fgb24a2013 was $39,000.

The market value of the Company’s debt approximiggegcorded value as the interest rate on eadghiigtrument approximates current market
rates.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously provided/Mglls Fargo) provides liquidity
and credit support for the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable matkistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) which were assutmgdlandec in the acquisition of
Lifecore. The IRBs are collateralized by a banteletf credit which is secured by a first mortgagethe Company’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In
addition, the Company pays an annual remarketiagfgial to 0.125% and an annual letter of credibfed.75%. The maturities on the IRBs are held in
sinking fund account, recorded in other asseteeratcompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, anghat out each year on Septembélr 1
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11. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yagerest rate swap agreement which expires on 80riR015 under its prior credit agreement
with Wells Fargo. The interest rate swap was odfiyndesignated as a cash flow hedge of futurgéstepayments of LIBOR and had a notional amou
$20 million. As a result of the interest rate swi@msaction, the Company fixed for a five-year paithe interest rate at 4.24% subject to marketdas
interest rate risk on $20 million of borrowings endhe credit agreement with Wells Fargo. The Camiseobligations under the interest rate swap
transaction as to the scheduled payments werergearhand secured on the same basis as its obfigathder the credit agreement with Wells Fargo at
the time the agreement was consummated. Upon egtetd the new Term Loan with BMO Harris, the Canyp used the proceeds from that loan to pay
off the Wells Fargo credit facility. The swap wittlells Fargo was not terminated upon the extinguéstirof the debt with Wells Fargo. As a result of
extinguishing the debt with Wells Fargo as of M&y 2012, the swap was no longer an effective hadgdeherefore, the fair value of the swap at tme ti
the debt was extinguished of $347,000 was revdreet other comprehensive income and recorded ieraRpense during fiscal year 2012. The fair
value of the swap arrangement as of February 23} a6d May 26, 2013 was $67,000 and $163,000, césely, and is included in other accrued
liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Bala&heets.

12. Related Party

The Company provides cooling and distribution sesito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC ("Bsde"), a commodity produce
distributor, in which the Chairman of Apio has anfing and ownership interest, respectively. Dgitime three months ended February 23, 2014 and
February 24, 2013, the Company recognized revesfu®373,000 and $334,000, respectively, which Hzen included in product sales and in service
revenues in the accompanying Consolidated Statsnoé@omprehensive Income, from the sale of pradantl providing cooling services to these
parties. During the nine months ended Februar2@B4 and February 24, 2013, the Company recogn&ezhues of $1.5 million and $2.0 million,
respectively, which have been included in prodatgsand in service revenues in the accompanyimgd@idated Statements of Comprehensive Income,
from the sale of products and providing cooling/gsss to these parties. The related receivablenbataof $189,000 and $671,000 are included inelat
party accounts receivable in the accompanying Qintated Balance Sheets as of February 23, 201Mayd26, 2013, respectively.

Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabgve, the Company purchases produce from Beaglesidrm in which the Chairman of Apio
has an ownership interest, and Windset for satleitd parties. During the three months ended Felrdd, 2014 and February 24, 2013 the Company
recognized cost of product sales of $570,000 a3d $80, respectively, which have been includedst of product sales in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income, from the sapgaducts purchased from these parties. Duringitme months ended February 23, 2014 and February
24, 2013, the Company recognized cost of produessd $3.2 million and $4.8 million, respectivelyhich have been included in cost of product sales
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Incénom, the sale of products purchased from thestgsaiThe related accounts payable of $109,000
and $786,000 are included in related party accqueable in the accompanying Consolidated BalaheetS as of February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013,
respectively.

All related party transactions are monitored qurtey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
13. Stockholders’ Equity

During the three months ended February 23, 20®4Cthmpany did not grant any equity awards. Duriregrtine months ended February 23,
2014, the Company granted options to purchase @9XkBares of common stock and 128,631 of restritteek unit awards.

As of February 23, 2014 the Company has reservethBlion shares of Common Stock for future issweander its current and former equity
plans.
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On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleed3af Directors of the Company had approved thebdishment of a stock repurchase plan
which allows for the repurchase of up to $10 millf the Company’s Common Stock. The Company mpyrehase its common stock from time to time
in open market purchases or in privately negotisitmasactions. The timing and actual number ofeshespurchased is at the discretion of managenfient o
the Company and will depend on a variety of factiordluding stock price, corporate and regulateguirements, market conditions, the relative
attractiveness of other capital deployment oppdiiesand other corporate priorities. The stockurepase program does not obligate Landec to acquire
any amount of its common stock and the program Ineamodified, suspended or terminated at any tinleea€Company's discretion without prior notice.
During both the three and nine months ended Fep2#r2014, the Company did not purchase any slerése open market.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity (in thousands, except share amounts):

Common Stock Shares

Balance at May 26, 2013 26,402,24
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 339,96¢
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares teabler 38,05¢
Balance at February 23, 2014 26,780,27
Common Stock
Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 2€
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 1
Balance at February 23, 2014 $ 27
Additional Paid-in Capital
Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 126,25¢
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 2,147
Taxes incurred by Company for RSUs vested (326)
Stock-based compensation expense 997
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation expense 1,90¢
Balance at February 23, 2014 $ 130,98(
Retained Earnings
Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 52,40¢
Net income 14,60:
Balance at February 23, 2014 $ 67,01:
Non controlling Interest
Balance at May 26, 2013 $ 1,721
Non controlling interest in net incon 12z
Distributions to non controlling interest (226)
Balance at February 23, 2014 $ 1,61¢
14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations ththuggh strategic business units. Based upon theniaftion reported to the chief operating
decision maker, who is the Chief Executive Offitke Company has the following reportable segmettts Food Products Technology segment, the
Export segment and the Hyaluronan-based Biomagesegment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets arid gpecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut fruit eegetables, the majority of which
incorporate the BreatheWay specialty packaginghiemetail grocery, club store and food servicesigtry. In addition, the Food Products Technology
segment sells BreatheWay packaging to partnenmsdietvegetable products. The Food Export segmersistsrof revenues generated from the purchase
and sale of primarily whole commodity fruit and e¢aple products to Asia and domestically. The HAeloeBiomaterials segment sells products utilizing
hyaluronan, a naturally occurring polysaccharids th widely distributed in the extracellular matof connective tissues in both animals and hunians,
medical use primarily in the Ophthalmic, Orthopealil Veterinary markets. Corporate licenses Lasdeafented Intellicoat® seed coatings to the
farming industry and licenses the Company’s Intetifpolymers for personal care products and otlterstnial products. The Corporate segment also
includes general and administrative expenses, maa-Products Technology and non HA-based Biomadsdriterest income and income tax expenses.
Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Food Productshhelogy, the Food Export and the Hyaluronan-b&ethaterials segments include charges for
corporate services and tax sharing allocated fieCorporate segment. All of the assets of the Goppre located within the United States of America
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The Company'’s international sales by geographyased on the billing address of the customer amd afollows (in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
February 23, February 24, February 23, February 24,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Taiwan $ 2€ $ 2¢ % 272 $ 28.7
Canada $ 121 $ 74 $ 31t $ 19.7
China $ 1.2 | 8 0c $ 6.6 $ 4.5
Indonesia $ 2z $ 41 $ 71 $ 17.¢
Japan $ 1€ $ 1t $ 71 % 7.4
Belgium $ 111 $ 106 $ 131 $ 15.2
All Other Countries $ 22 $ 6. $ 12z $ 15.7
Operations by segment consisted of the followingt{busands):
Food Product HA-based
Three Months Ended Febr. 23, 2014 Technology = Food Export  Biomaterials Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 95,43. $ 10,67¢ $ 20,17¢ $ 96 $ 126,37
International sales $ 12,01 $ 10,67¢ $ 10,61: $ — 3 33,30:
Gross profit $ 7,28: $ 99C $ 11,787 $ 96 $ 20,15¢
Net income (loss $ 131 % 20€ $ 7,192 $ (1,129 $ 6,40(
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,04C $ 1% 504 $ 32 $ 1,57
Dividend income $ 281 $ — 3 — 3 — % 281
Interest income $ 3 % — $ 74 $ 1% 78
Interest expense $ 33z % — 3 58 $ — $ 39C
Income tax expense $ 46 $ 58 $ 2,02¢ $ 1,12 $ 3,67¢
Three Months Ended Febr. 24, 2012
Net sales $ 86,707 $ 13,38. $ 17,33. $ 44 $ 117,86
International sales $ 7,29 $ 13,38 $ 13,57¢ $ — $ 34,25:
Gross profit $ 5,84¢ $ 1,031 $ 10,24: $ 38 $ 17,50¢
Net income (loss $ CICI 228 $ 5,687 $ (1,469 $ 4,78¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,22¢ % 1% 60z $ 39 % 1,86¢
Dividend income $ 281 $ — $ — $ 281
Interest income $ 4 % — $ 42 $ — $ 46
Interest expense $ 421 $ — % 66 $ — $ 487
Income tax expense $ 112 $ 76 $ 1,89t $ 67C $ 2,75¢
Nine Months Ended Febr. 23, 20
Net sales $ 262,95 $ 55,10¢ $ 37,53¢ $ 282 $ 355,88:
International sales $ 31,83¢ $ 55,00f $ 18,35¢ $ — $ 105,19
Gross profit $ 24,38: $ 4,015 $ 17,80 $ 22z $ 46,42
Net income (loss $ 9,40: $ 1,20¢ $ 7427 $ (3,435 $ 14,60:
Depreciation and amortization $ 3,566 $ 3 % 1,692 $ 10z $ 5,36¢
Dividend income $ 844 $ — 3 — 3 — % 844
Interest income $ 8 $ — $ 174 $ 1% 18¢
Interest expense $ 1,06¢ $ — $ 19 $ — % 1,257
Income tax expense $ 2,43¢ % 341 $ 2,09 $ 3,15¢ $ 8,02¢
Nine Months Ended Febr. 24, 20
Net sales $ 233,93 $ 66,85 $ 33,04: $ 767 $ 334,59!
International sales $ 19,47 $ 66,747 $ 22,60! $ — 3 108,82!
Gross profit $ 28,89. $ 4407 $ 15,72 $ 707 $ 49,73(
Net income (loss $ 15,46¢ $ 1,40: $ 571 $ (4,519 $ 18,06¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 3,63¢ $ 3 3 1,777 $ 11z % 5,527
Dividend income $ 844 $ — $ — 3 — $ 844
Interest income $ 12 $ — $ 92 $ — $ 104
Interest expense $ 1,30 $ — % 22 $ — $ 1,52¢
Income tax expense $ 3,84¢ $ 467 $ 1,90¢ $ 2,021 $ 8,23¢




During the nine months ended February 23, 2014Fafduary 24, 2013, sales to the Company'’s topdisstomers accounted for 43% and 39%,
respectively, of revenues. The Company’s top twaiamers, Costco Wholesale Corporation and Wal-E#otes, Inc., from the Food Products
Technology segment accounted for 20% and 12%, cegply, for nine months ended February 23, 201d 406 and 12%, respectively, for the nine
months ended February 24, 2013. The Company exjietidor the foreseeable future, a limited nunifesustomers may continue to account for a
significant portion of its net revenues.

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofiancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the unaudited consolidated financial staats and accompanying notes included in
Part I-Item 1 of this Form 10-Q and the auditedsodidated financial statements and accompanyingsnand Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations idelliin Landec’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiseal year ended May 26, 2013.

Except for the historical information containeddiey the matters discussed in this report are fali@oking statements within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 193se forwardeoking statements involve certain risks and uraieties that could cause actual res
to differ materially from those in the forward-ldoly statements. Potential risks and uncertaintielside, without limitation, those mentioned in thisrm
10-Q and those mentioned in Landec’s Annual Repofform 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 26, 20%khdec undertakes no obligation to update or
revise any forward-looking statements in orderefitect events or circumstances that may arise efeedate of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

There have been no material changes to the Congpenitycal accounting policies which are included @escribed in the Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 filed with the Sémg and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2013.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landedche “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aiddifferentiated products for food and
biomaterials markets and license technology apibies to partners. The Company has two proprigtatymer technology platforms: 1) Intelimer®
polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA”) biopolymers. TBempany’s HA biopolymers are proprietary in thayt are specially formulated for specific
customers to meet strict regulatory requiremertte. Company’s polymer technologies, along with itstomer relationships and trade names, are the
foundation, and a key differentiating advantagenupbich Landec has built its business. The Comsaig specialty packaged branded Eat Smart and
GreenLine and private label fresh-cut vegetablesvamle produce to retailers, club stores and fendse operators, primarily in the United States,
Canada and Asia through its Apio, Inc. (“Apio”) sithary and sells HA-based biomaterials throughifscore Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”) subsidiary.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produdtadiegy, Food Export and HA-based Biomaterialaeheof which is described below.

Landec’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, Inc. (“Affjpoperates our Food Products Technology businesish combines our proprietary
BreatheWay® food packaging technology with the bdjtiees of a large national food supplier and wkdded produce processor which sells products
under the Eat Smart® and GreenLine® brands. In’Apialue-added operations, produce is processédrbming, washing, mixing, and packaging into
bags and trays that in most cases incorporate lcanBeeatheWay membrane technology. The BreatheM&ybrane increases shelf life and reduces
shrink (waste) for retailers and, for certain pretdueliminates the need for ice during the distidn cycle and helps to ensure that consumersveece
fresh produce by the time the product makes its tlveyugh the supply chain. Apio also licenses theaBeWay technology to partners such as Chiquita
Brands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for packagiand distribution of bananas and to Windset hhgd010 Ltd., a Canadian corporation (“Windset"),
for packaging of greenhouse grown cucumbers, pset tomatoes.
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Apio also operates the Food Export business thridagubsidiary, Cal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-ExThe Export business purchases and :
whole fruit and vegetable products predominanthi$tan markets.

Landec’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecore Biomeajdnc. (“Lifecore”), operates our HA-based Bioms@dls business and is principally
involved in the development and manufacture of petslutilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occurringdysaccharide that is widely distributed in the
extracellular matrix of connective tissues in arignacluding humans. Lifecore’s products are sotildwide for use primarily in three medical areds:
Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and (3) Veterinary. tidiion, Lifecore provides specialized asepticdifid finish services in a cGMO validated
manufacturing facility for supplying commercialinital and pre-clinical products. Lifecore also gligs limited quantities of HA, and raw materiais t
customers pursuing other medical applications, sischiesthetic surgery, medical device coatingsjdiengineering and pharmaceuticals. Lifecore
leverages its fermentation process to manufacta@ipm, pharmaceutical-grade HA, and uses its &sfifihg capabilities to provide privatibeled HA
finished goods to its customers. Furthermore, lofeananufactures and sells it own HA-based finigimatls in several foreign markets. Lifecore is
known as a premium supplier of HA with expertiséarmulation and filling of difficult to handle pducts. Its name recognition allows Lifecore toaattr
new customers and sell new products and offeeitsices with a minimal marketing and sales infrastire.

Landec also develops proprietary polymer technekgind applies them in a wide range of applicaiiociading seed coatings and treatments,
controlled release systems, personal care prodadipressure sensitive adhesives. These applisatrercommercialized through partnerships witrdthir
parties resulting in licensing and royalty revendes example, INCOTEC Holding North America, IftNCOTEC”) has an exclusive license to our
Intellicoat® seed coating and treatments technqlédgryProducts and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air Productegs an exclusive license to our Intelimer polymers
for personal care products and Nitta Corporatidtitta”) licenses Landec's proprietary pressure gesadhesives for use in the manufacture of
electronic components by their customers.

Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Weptaiad our initial public offering in 1996 and cddommon Stock is listed on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the sym“LNDC.” Our principal executive offices are locatatt3603 Haven Avenue, Menlo Park, California
94025 and our telephone number is (650) 306-1650.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in three core business segmfemtsl Products Technology, Food Export and Hyalansbased Biomaterials.

Landec Corporation

Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

Food Products
Technology

Food Export HA-based Biomaterials

Food Products Technology Business

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio’s primary lmesis is fresh-cut and whole value-added produatspty packaged in our proprietary
BreatheWay packaging. The fresh-cut value-addedyats business markets a variety of fresh-cut amalewegetables to the top retail grocery chains,
club stores and food service operators. Durindiival year ended May 26, 2013, Apio shipped appnately twenty-eight million cartons of produce to
its customers throughout North America, primarilythie United States.

-22-




There are five major distinguishing characteristitApio that provide competitive advantages infio®d Products Technology market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeseltet of branded and private label fresh-cut ahdlevvalue-added
produce. It is focused on selling products undeEat Smart and GreenLine brands and private tabelds for its fresh-cut and whole value-

added products. As retail grocery chains, clubestand food service operators consolidate, Apicelspositioned as a single source of a broad
range of products.

Reduced Farming Risks:Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownépsdf farmland, and instead, contracts with growiergroduce and
during certain times of the year enters into jeimtures with growers for produce. The year-roumgang of produce is a key component to the
fresh-cut and whole value-added processing business

Access to Customer BaseApio has strategically invested in the rapidly giogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. Apialue-added
processing plant in Guadalupe, CA, is automatel stdte-of-the-art vegetable processing equiprienb operates one large central processing
facility in one of the lowest cost growing regidngCalifornia, the Santa Maria Valley, and for thejority of its non-green bean vegetable
business, use its packaging technology for natidewlelivery. With the acquisition of GreenLine, Apiow has three East Coast processing
facilities and five East Coast distribution centiersnationwide delivery of green beans and regefsglio began processing non-green bean
products in one of our East Coast processing fi@silio meet the next day delivery needs of custeme

Expanded Product Line Using Technology and Unique Bnds: Apio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagauphology, is introducing new
value-added products each year. These new profadings range from various sizes of fresh-cut lembgroducts, to vegetable trays, to whole
produce, to vegetable salads and snack packs. @iminlast twelve months, Apio has introduced elavew unique products.

Products Currently in Approximately 75% of U.S. Retail Grocery Stores: With the acquisition of GreenLine, Apio now hasduwots in

approximately 75% of all U.S. retail grocery storelis gives Apio the opportunity to cross sell Batart value-added products to GreenLine
customers and GreenLine value-added products t&fBatt customers.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 8@ advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingadodly for shelf-life sensitive vegetables
and fruit to third party partners outside of Apiatsre value-added business. The Company’s spepatfiyaging for case liner products extends thd shel

life of certain produce commodities up to 50%. Ttiglf life extension can enable the utilizatioralérnative distribution strategies to gain eéitties o
reach new markets while maintaining product quadtshe end customer.

Apio Packaging'’s first program has concentratetb@manas and was formally consummated when Apigezhieto an agreement to supply
Chiquita with its proprietary banana packaging textbgy. This global agreement applies to the ripgnconservation and shelf-life extension of basana
The BreatheWay packaging technology extends thiglifleeof bananas by approximately ten days.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wwllyed subsidiary of Monsanto Company
(“Monsanto”), to develop novel broccoli and cawlifler products for the exclusive sale by Apio in larth American market. These novel products are

packaged in Landec’s proprietary BreatheWay packpgnd commercial sales started in 2012 under Muo'saBeneforte® brand to retail grocery and
club store chains.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieesigreement with Windset for Windset to utilize dad's proprietary breathable packaging to

extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucumlgegpers and tomatoes. Commercial sales of Wirndseimbers and peppers in BreatheWay
packaging have begun.
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On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelfase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) wittd¥éin Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senior prefeshades for $15 million and 201 common shares fod§the “Purchased Shares”). The Company’s
common shares represent a 20.1% interest in Win@lsetnon-voting senior preferred shares yieldsh cividend of 7.5% annually. The dividend is
payable within 90 days of each anniversary of ttexetion of the Purchase Agreement. The Purchaseefgent includes a put and call option, which can
be exercised on the sixth anniversary of the Pgeeidgreement whereby Apio can exercise the pultats Purchased Shares to Windset, or Windset car
exercise the call to purchase the Purchased Stiare#\pio, in either case, at a price equal to 20df the appreciation in the fair market value of
Windset from the date of the Company’s investmirdgugh the put/call date, plus the purchase priideeoPurchased Shares. Under the terms of the
arrangement with Windset, the Company is entittedesignate one of five members on the Board adbars of Windset.

Food Export Business

Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiaedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydruit and vegetable products
primarily to Asia through Apio’s export company,|€Ea. The Food Export business is a buy/sell bussiribat realizes a margin on average in the 5-10%
range.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business
Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated thrawg Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Lande@pril 30, 2010.

Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asépticulation and filling expertise to be a leadethie development of HA-based products for
multiple applications and to take advantage of Héndevice and drug opportunities which leverageekpertise in manufacturing and aseptic syringe
filling capabilities. Elements of Lifecore’s strgieinclude the following:

. Establish strategic relationships with market leesdé&ifecore will continue to develop applications fmmoducts with partners who have
rong marketing, sales and distribution capaédito en-user markets. Through its strong reputation astbhy of providing premium HA products,
fecore has been able to establish -term relationships with the market leading ophtieElbgy and orthopedics companies.

. Expand medical applications for H®ue to the growing knowledge of the unique chiardstics of HA, and the role it plays in normal
physiology, Lifecore continues to identify and puesurther uses for HA in other medical applicasiosuch as wound care, aesthetic surgery, drug
delivery, device coatings and pharmaceuticals.hearpplications may involve expanding process logwmeent activity and/or additional licensing of
technology.

. Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue ca@ut aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitié$fecore is currently utilizing its
manufacturing capabilities to provide contract Bz for customers related to specialized aseifititgf fermentation and purification and continues
seek new opportunities for contract services.

. Maintain flexibility in product developmeand supply relationshipsifecore’s vertically integrated development andnunfacturing
capabilities allow it to establish a variety of tractual relationships with global corporate parsn&ifecore’s role in these relationships extefidm
supplying HA raw materials to manufacturing of @sely-packaged, finished sterile products to deping and manufacturing its own proprietary
products.

Other Non-Core Businesses
Seeds Business — Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Landec developed Intellicoat seed coating appbticatiare designed to control seed germination tipiiraggease crop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. Pollinator Plus® @ogs, commercialized by Landec over a decade aga;warently available on male inbred corn used

by seed companies as a method for spreading paimen increase yields and reduce risk in the patidn of hybrid seed corn. This business was &old
INCOTEC in June 2012.

24




Industrial Materials and Adhesivi

Landec’s industrial product development strategyifes on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesdhesives in the polymer materials market.
During the product development stage, the Compaentifies corporate partners to support the ongdagelopment and testing of these products, with
the ultimate goal of licensing the applicationshat appropriate time. The Company licensed it petgry pressure sensitive adhesives to Nitta ferins
the manufacturing of electronic components by thesgtomers and the Company has licensed its létenhoset catalysts technology to Air Products and
Chemicals, Inc. for use in thermoset chemistrief ss epoxy, polyurethane, and unsaturated potyeste

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatioagesly is focused on supplying Intelimer materialsxdustry leaders for use in lotions and
creams, as well as color cosmetics, lipsticks anddare. The Company's exclusive marketing parthierProducts, is currently shipping products to
L'Oreal, Mentholatum, Louis Widmer, Aris Cosmetimsd other companies for use in lotions and credamsrights to develop and sell Landepolymer:
for personal care products were licensed to AidBets in March 2006 along with the latent catatigiits. The Company’s Intelimer polymers are
currently in over 50 personal care products worttbwi

Results of Operations

Revenueqin thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Nine months Nine months
ended 2/23/14  ended 2/24/13 Change ended 2/23/14  ended 2/24/13 Change
Food Products Technology  $ 95,43. $ 86,707 1% $ 262,95 $ 233,93: 12%
Food Export 10,67¢ 13,38 (20%) 55,10¢ 66,85 (18%)
Total Apio 106,10° 100,08t 6% 318,06 300,78! 6%
HA-based Biomaterials 20,17¢ 17,33: 16% 37,53¢ 33,04: 14%
Corporate 96 44§ (79%) 282 767 (63%)
Total Revenues $ 126,37¢ $ 117,86 7% $ 355,88 $ 334,59! 6%

Food Products Technology (Apio)

Apio’s Food Products Technology revenues consistweénues generated from the sale of specialtygugekfresh-cut and whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgwal in our proprietary packaging and sold urgéo’s Eat Smart and GreenlLine brands and
various private labels. In addition, Food Proddashnology revenues include the revenues genefratedApio Cooling, LP, a vegetable cooling
operation in which Apio is the general partner vet60% ownership position and from the sale of Bre&/ay packaging to license partners.

The increase in Apio’s Food Products Technologgnees for the three and nine months ended Feb23ai3014 compared to the same periods
of last year was primarily due to a 6% and 7%, eetipely, increase in unit volume sales resultingnprily from expanded product offerings and a 10%
and 8%, respectively, unit volume increase in tesH-cut vegetable category, according to Nielseapled with new product introductions which
typically have a higher price per unit than histatiofferings.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio Food Export revenues consist of revenues géeerfrom the purchase and sale of primarily wicolmmodity fruit and vegetable products
to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenue equal ®ghle price to third parties because it takesttitthe product while in transit.
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The decrease in revenues in Apio’s Food Exportriassi for the three and nine months ended Febr@a024 compared to the same periods
last year was due to a 20% and 13%, respectivebredse in unit volume sales primarily as a reduiew Indonesian import quotas on fruit.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)
Lifecore’'s HA-based Biomaterials business prindipgenerates revenue through the sale of prodectgining HA. Lifecore primarily sells
products to customers in three medical areas: phtl@almic, which represented approximately 65%itédore’s revenues in fiscal year 2013, (2)

Orthopedic, which represented approximately 20%ifefcore’s revenues in fiscal year 2013 and (3)evieary/Other.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for the threkrd@ne months ended February 23, 2014 compartmteame periods last year was primarily
due to a 40% and 39%, respectively, increase iemes in Lifecore’s aseptic filling business frorareased sales to existing customers.

Corporate
Corporate revenues are generated from the licemgjreements with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTEC.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the thik@iap months ended February 23, 2014 compardteteame periods of the prior year was
significant.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Nine months Nine months
ended 2/23/14  ended 2/24/13 Change ended 2/23/14  ended 2/24/13 Change
Food Products Technology  $ 728. $ 5,84¢ 25% $ 24,38: $ 28,89: (16%)
Food Export 99C 1,031 (4%) 4,01¢ 4,407 (9%)
Total Apio 8,27: 6,871 20% 28,39¢ 33,29¢ (15%)
HA-based Biomaterials 11,78 10,24: 15% 17,80( 15,72t 13%
Corporate 96 38¢ (75%) 222 707 (68%)
Total Gross Profit $ 20,15¢ $ 17,50¢ 15% $ 46,42. $ 49,73( (7%)

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnasi including product mix, customer mix, manciiaring costs, volume, sale discounts and
charges for excess or obsolete inventory, to nafeeaMany of these factors influence or are irgkted with other factors. The Company includes in
cost of sales all of the costs related to the sbfproducts in accordance with U.S. generally atmpccounting principles. These costs include the
following: raw materials (including produce, caseieeds and packaging), direct labor, overheatu@img indirect labor, depreciation, and faciliglated
costs) and shipping and shipping-related costs fall@mving are the primary reasons for the charigegoss profit for the three and nine months ended
February 23, 2014 compared to the same periodgdastas outlined in the table above.

Food Products Technology (Apio)

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s Food Pradutechnology business for the three months endbdury 23, 2014 compared to the same
period last year was primarily due to the grossipgenerated from the 10% increase in revenuésyarable mix shift in revenues to a greater pegn
of revenues coming from higher margin new produetsus the lower margin core packaged vegetabiupte and a favorable change in produce
sourcing costs during this year’s third quarter pared to last year's third quarter due to more falle weather conditions in California this winter
compared to last winter. During the third quartelast year the Company incurred significant praglsourcing costs in excess of contracted pricedalue
weather events that were not incurred during tird tfuarter of this year.

-26-




The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s Food Prasldechnology business for the nine months endbduBey 23, 2014 compared to the same
period last year was primarily due to much higlhantexpected operating costs including raw prodocecing cost during primarily the first six months
of fiscal year 2014 resulting from lower yields doea variety of factors, most importantly the hegaains in the Midwest and along the East Coast and
cooler than normal temperatures in California. Mlgher operating costs reduced Apio’s gross plofiapproximately $7.4 million during the first nine
months of fiscal year 2014 which was partially effby the gross profit generated from the 12% &s®en revenues.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s Food Export business is a buy/sell busirteasrealizes a gross margin typically in the 5-1@tge.

The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s export hass during the three and nine months ended Fgti28a2014 compared to the same periods
last year was due to the 20% and 18%, respectidelyrease in revenues. The decreases in revenvesigber than the decreases in gross profit becaus
of favorable product mix changes to higher margodpcts which resulted in a higher gross margirinduthe three and nine months ended February 23,
2014 of 9.3% and 7.3%, respectively, comparedgmas margin of 7.7% and 6.6%, respectively, dutfiregthree and nine months ended February 24,
2013.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

The increase in gross profit during the three @nd months ended February 23, 2014 compared tsetime periods last year was primarily du
the 16% and 14%, respectively, increase in revenues

Corporate

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for theethred nine months ended February 23, 2014 compatad same periods of the prior year was
due to R&D revenues of $275,000 and $413,000, otispdy, received from Nitta during the three aridenmonths ended February 24, 2013 of last year.

Operating Expensegin thousands):

Threemonths Three months Nine months Nine months
ended 2/23/14  ended 2/24/13 Change ended 2/23/14  ended 2/24/13 Change
Research and Development:
Apio $ 264 $ 23€ 12% $ 87t % 83¢ 4%
Lifecore 1,13 1,25¢ (10%) 3,70z 3,62¢ 2%
Corporate 327 831 (61%) 991 2,17¢ (55%)
Total R&D $ 1,72: $ 2,32¢ (26%) $ 5,56¢ $ 6,64: (16%)
Selling, General and
Administrative and other:
Apio $ 5,79 $ 5,61« 3% $ 16,85¢ $ 13,43t 25%
Lifecore 98C 1,09: (10%) 3,14: 3,48¢ (1C%)
Corporate 1,92¢ 1,817 6% 5,97( 5,41( 1C%
Total S,G&A $ 8,70( $ 8,52¢ 2% $ 25,96¢ $ 22,33: 16%

Research and Development (R&D)

Landec’s research and development consisted phinwmproduct development and commercializatiotidtives. Research and development
efforts at Apio are focused on the Company’s pedpry BreatheWay membranes used for packaging pepaith a focus on extending the shelf-life of
sensitive vegetables and fruit. In the Lifecoreihess, the research and development efforts ateséalcon new products and applications for HA-based
biomaterials. For Corporate, the research and dpuent efforts are primarily focused on supportimgdevelopment and commercialization of new
products and new technologies in our food and Héirmsses.
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The decrease in R&D expenses for the three andmamhs ended February 23, 2014 compared to the panods last year was primarily due
to a decrease in Corporate R&D because of the Cayripansitioning away from R&D and licensing coltahtions to focusing R&D efforts on its core
food and HA businesses.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“S,G&A”) exges consist primarily of sales and marketing exgeassociated with Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhanstaadministrative expenses. Included in S,G&AApio for the nine months ended February 24,
2013 is a $3.9 million reversal of the earn-outility which was recorded as a reduction of ope@gxpenses.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for the three manlded February 23, 2014 compared to the sameddasbyear was primarily due to an
increase in accounting and tax fees, public compasys and board of director fees, partially offgenho bonuses being accrued at Apio or Corpomate f
the three months ended February 23, 2014 due talaessults being below plan compared to last yergan bonuses were accrued during the three month:
ended February 24, 2013.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for the nine moartised February 23, 2014 compared to the same dasbgear was primarily due to the $
million reversal of the earn-out liability assoedtwith the GreenLine acquisition during the secguarter of last year and an increase in accouiatiray
tax fees, public company costs and board of dirdets partially offset by no bonuses being accatedpio or Corporate for the nine months ended
February 23, 2014 due to actual results being belaw compared to last year when bonuses wereedchuring the nine months ended February 24,
2013.

Other (in thousands):

Three months Three months Nine months Nine months

ended 2/23/14 ended 2/24/13 Change ended 2/23/14 ended 2/24/13 Change
Dividend | ncome $ 281 $ 281 — % 844 $ 844 —
I nterest Income $ 7€ % 46 7% $ 18 $ 104 76%
Interest Expense $ 390 % (487) 0% $ 1,257 $ (1,526 (18%)
Other Income $ 40C $ 1,047 62% $ 8,10 $ 6,28¢ 29%
Income Taxes $ (3,679 $ (2,759 34% $ (8,029 $ (8,23¢) (3%)
Non controlling Int.  $ (22 $ 3 63:% $ (129 $ (159 (23%)

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aedron our $15 million preferred stock investmenfMimdset which yields a cash dividend of
7.5% annually. There was no change in dividendriredor the three and nine months ended Februar®3 compared to the same periods last year.

Interest Income
The increase in interest income for the three anel months ended February 23, 2014 compared tsafme periods last year was not significant.
Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during the tim@aiae months ended February 23, 2014 compartie tsame periods last year was due to the
Company paying down its debt by $11.1 million dgrthe last twelve months.

Other Income (Expense)

The decrease in other income for the three momttiedeFebruary 23, 2014 was due to a decrease ah#mge in the fair market value of our
Windset investment compared to the change in ting ¢uarter of last year.
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The increase in other income for the nine monttiedr-ebruary 23, 2014 was due to an increase ichdnege in the fair market value of our
Windset investment compared to the change in teerfine months of last year.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for the timenths ended February 23, 2014 was due to a3d%aise in net income before taxes
compared to the same period last year. The efetaix rate for the three months ended Februar@@B} was 37% compared to 36% for the same period
last year.

The decrease in the income tax expense for thennam¢hs ended February 23, 2014 was due to a 14%ate in net income before taxes
compared to the same period last year. The effetaix rate for the nine months ended February @B4 2vas 35% compared to 31% for the same period
last year. The effective tax rates for the firstenmonths of last year was lower than this year @sult of the $3.9 million earn out adjustmentolilwas
not subject to income tax.

Non controlling Interest
The non controlling interest consists of the lirdifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofoApooling, LP.

The change in the non controlling interest forttivee and nine months ended February 23, 2014 aexhpathe same periods last year was not
significant.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of February 23, 2014, the Company had cash asld equivalents of $13.0 million, a net decreaskoof million from $13.7 million at May
26, 2013.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $13.8 million of cash from opegadictivities during the nine months ended Febr@8ry2014, compared to $13.5 million for
the nine months ended February 24, 2013. The pyiswurces of cash from operating activities dutheynine months ended February 23, 2014 were
from (1) generating $14.7 million of net income) $5.4 million of non-cash depreciation/amortizatand stock based compensation expenses and (3) a
$5.3 million net increase in deferred tax liabélgi These sources of cash were partially offs¢i@y8.1 million of non-cash income generated fthen
fair market value change of the Company’s investrirelVindset and from a net increase of $2.9 millio working capital. The primary factors which
increased working capital during the first nine tinsnof fiscal year 2014 were (1) a $4.5 millionrggse in receivables primarily due to the timing of
receipts at Apio and from February 2014 revenuekifecore being $2.5 million higher than Lifecose¥ay 2013 revenues, (2) a $1.6 million increase in
inventory primarily at Apio as a result of increggisales activity and (3) a $2.5 million decreasadcounts payable due to the timing of paymenet
Apio and Lifecore. These increases in working @pitere partially offset by a $2.7 million incredasecurrent liabilities resulting primarily from ¢h
timing of invoices at Apio and a $3.9 million ines® in Apio’s cost of sales for February 2014 caeghéo May 2013.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the nimanths ended February 23, 2014 was $8.6 millionpzoed to $8.3 million for the same period
last year. The primary uses of cash in investiriyigies during the first nine months of fiscal ye2014 were for the purchase of $10.2 million of
equipment primarily for capacity expansion to suppiwe growth of the Apio value-added and Lifecbusinesses.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the nimenths ended February 23, 2014 was $5.9 millionpaoed to $17.4 million for the same period
last year. The net cash used in financing activitiering the first nine months of fiscal year 2@dak primarily due to the $8.5 million of net payrtsean
the Company’s lines of credit and long-term deligeifby $2.1 million received from proceeds frorteszf common stock. The primary use of cash from
financing activities during the first nine monthifdast year was from a $10 million earn out paynfesin the Lifecore acquisition, $9.7 million of vehi
was recorded as a contingent liability at the tohthe acquisition and was therefore classified fesancing activity.

-29-




Capital Expenditures

During the nine months ended February 23, 2014déampurchased equipment for capacity expansionfgpast the growth of the Apio value-
added and Lifecore businesses. These expendigpessented the majority of the $10.2 million ofit@expenditures.

Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable matlistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the acquisition of
Lifecore. The IRBs are collateralized by a banteletf credit which is secured by a first mortgagethe Lifecore facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In
addition, Lifecore pays an annual remarketing fpeaéto 0.125% and an annual letter of credit fie@ 66%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agremiaiwith General Electric Capital
Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Capital”pallectively the “Apio Loan Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million asset-based workaagpital revolving line of credit, with an intereate of LIBOR plus 2%, with availability based on
the monthly combination of the eligible accountseieable and inventory balances of Apio and itssglibries (availability was $19.2 million at
February 23, 2014). Apio’s revolving line of crelés an unused fee of 0.375% per annum. At Feb2&r2014, no amounts were outstanding
under Apio’s revolving line of credit.

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan which matune seven years payable in monthly principal anerest payments of $175,356 with inte
based on a fixed rate of 4.39% per annum.

3) A $19.2 million real estate loan, $1.2 milliohwhich was paid in April 2013, and the remaindeturing in ten years. The real estate loan has a
fifteen year amortization period due in monthlyngipal and interest payments of $133,060 with ggebased on a fixed rate of 4.02% per
annum. The principal balance remaining at the dritleoten year term is due in one lump sum on Ma3022.

The obligations of Apio and its subsidiaries agsfrom the Apio Loan Agreements are secured bysl@mall of the property of Apio and its
subsidiaries. The Apio Loan Agreements containaruaty events of default under which obligationsldde accelerated or increased. Landec is
guaranteeing all obligations of Apio and its sulzsids to GE Capital under the loans describedanses (2) and (3) above and has pledged its equity
interest in Apio as collateral under the loan diégct in (1) above. The Apio Loan Agreements contaistomary covenants, such as limitations on the
ability to (1) incur indebtedness or grant liensiegative pledges on Apio’s assets; (2) make loansher investments; (3) pay dividends or repuseha
stock or other securities; (4) sell assets; (5pgrdn mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaselankdctions; (7) adopt certain benefit plans; &)anake
changes in Apio’s corporate structure. In additidpio must maintain a minimum fixed charge coveregi® of 1.10 to 1.0. Apio was in compliance with
all financial covenants as of February 23, 2014ardartized loan origination fees for the GE Debtéegments were $1.0 million and $1.2 million at
February 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013, respectivelgt,ae included in other assets in the Consolidatgdnce Sheets. Amortization of loan origination
fees recorded to interest expense for the threehm@mded February 23, 2014 and February 24, 2@18 $47,000 and $45,000, respectively.
Amortization of loan origination fees recordednterest expense for the nine months ended FebP3a3014 and February 24, 2013 were $140,000 and
$136,000, respectively.
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On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“BMO Harris”), collectively
(the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Creditrégment”) which includes (a) a one-year, $10.0ionlassebased working capital revolving li
of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 1%85with availability based on the combination ofelciore’s eligible accounts receivable and
inventory balances (availability was $9.4 millianFeebruary 23, 2014) and with no unused fee (atWelp 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013, no
amounts were outstanding under the line of credit) (b) a $12.0 million term loan which matureoar years due in monthly payments of
$250,000 with interest payable monthly based oar&ble interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the “Termal”).

2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which BN®ris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal tetis an irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Credit”) wdh is securing the IRB described below.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Lodgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgpf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such @stioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesgrant liens or negative pledges on Lifecor@sset:
(2) make loans or other investments; (3) pay divitieor repurchase stock or other securities; (fassets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) enter in® aad
leaseback transactions; (7) adopt certain benlefitspand (8) make changes in Lifecore’s corpastitecture. In addition, under the Credit Agreement,
Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimum fixed chargeerage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a minimum quicloraf 1.25 to 1.00, both of which must be satid
as of the end of each fiscal quarter commencinl thi¢ fiscal quarter ending August 26, 2012 anda(linimum tangible net worth of $29,000,000,
measured as of May 26, 2013, and as of the endobf fiscal year thereafter. Lifecore was in comqulewith all financial covenants as of February 23,
2014. Unamortized loan origination fees for theetifre Loan Agreements were $111,000 and $149,086batiary 23, 2014 and May 26, 2013,
respectively, and are included in other assetsdrCionsolidated Balance Sheets. Amortization of twégination fees recorded to interest expens&dtin
the three months ended February 23, 2014 and Fgt2d4a2013 was $13,000. Amortization of loan aragion fees recorded to interest expense for both
the nine months ended February 23, 2014 and Fgb24a2013 was $39,000.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously provided/Mglls Fargo) provides liquidity and credit supportthe IRBs.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaterest rate swap agreement under its prior ceggigement with Wells Fargo, which expires
on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swap was ogally designated as a cash flow hedge of futuerd@st payments of LIBOR and had a notional amount
of $20 million. As a result of the interest rateapatransaction, the Company fixed for a five-yesniqnl the interest rate at 4.24% subject to masksed
interest rate risk on $20 million of borrowings endhe credit agreement with Wells Fargo. The Comisaobligations under the interest rate swap
transaction as to the scheduled payments werergearhand secured on the same basis as its obfigathder the credit agreement with Wells Fargo at
the time the agreement was consummated. Upon egtetd the new Term Loan with BMO Harris, the Canyp used the proceeds from that loan to pay
off the Wells Fargo credit facility. The swap wittlells Fargo was not terminated upon the extinguéstirof the debt with Wells Fargo. As a result of
extinguishing the debt with Wells Fargo as of M& 2012, the swap was no longer an effective haddetherefore, the fair value of the swap at time ti
the debt was extinguished of $347,000 was revdrsetdother comprehensive income and recorded ieratRpense during fiscal year 2012. The fair
value of the swap arrangement as of February 23} a6d May 26, 2013 was $67,000 and $163,000, césely, and is included in other accrued
liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Bala&heets.

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galeith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketdzurities will be sufficient to finance its
operational and capital requirements for at |dastiext twelve months.

Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes to the Congpamayket risk during the first nine months of fisgsar 2014.
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ltem 4. Controlsand Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participation of@bief Executive Officer and our Chief FinancialfiGér, the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the peowdred by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.d8lasn this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded thatdisclosure controls and procedures are effeati ensuring that information required to be
disclosed in reports filed under the Exchange Acttorded, processed, summarized and reporteth it time periods specified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and are effective in provideasonable assurance that information requiree wisclosed by the Company in such reports is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s neamagt, including its Chief Executive Officer andi€trinancial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repagrtin

There were no changes in our internal controls &mancial reporting during the fiscal quarter eddrebruary 23, 2014 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal controls over financial repogtin
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Iltem 1. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npagy to any legal proceedings.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Except as set forth below, there have been nofgignt changes to the Company's risk factors whiehincluded and described in the FormKL0-
for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 filed wiie Securities and Exchange Commission on Auguxd53.

Iltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiesnd Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesirti shares repurchased by the Company durirfistag quarter ended on February 23, 2014.
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
Item 5. Other Information

None.
Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Title
18.1+ Preferability Letter from Independent Registere8llPuAccounting Firm dated March 28, 20

31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS** XBRL Instance

101.SCH**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB**XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels

101.PRE*XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

+ Filed herewith.
** Information is furnished and not filed or a pafta registration statement or prospectus for eep of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Adi9H3, a

amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of gediBoof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnaleé, and otherwise is not subject to liability end
these sections
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisdRaport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skinner
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: March 28, 2014

-34-



Exhibit 18.]
Preferability Letter from Independent Registere8llPuAccounting Firm
March 28, 2014

Board of Directors
Landec Corporation
3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Note 1,“Intangible Assets”, of Notes to the Consolidatédacial Statements of Landec Corporation (the “@any”) included in its Form 10-Q for the
period ended February 23, 2014 describes a chartge method of accounting regarding the date®fdbmpany’s annual goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible asset impairment test from the lastafahe fiscal month in July to the first day of thecal fourth quarter. There are no authoritativieeria for
determining a “preferable’ impairment testing da&sed on the particular circumstances; howevetonmelude that such a change is to an acceptable
alternative which, based on your business judgrtemtake this change and for the stated reasopsgfierable in your circumstances. We have not
conducted an audit in accordance with the stand#rtiee Public Company Accounting Oversight Bodddifed States) of any financial statements of the
Company as of any date or for any period subsedoévity 26, 2013, and therefore we do not expragsainion on any financial statements of Landec
Corporation subsequent to that date.

Very truly yours,

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
San Francisco, California



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly rémor Form 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartexport does not contain any untrue statementodi@rial fact or omit to state a material factassary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nietaaliisg with respect to the period covered by this
quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this quarterly report, fairly present in rakhterial
respects the financial condition, results of operastand cash flows of the registrant as of, andtifie periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | are responsible for establishing anthtaming disclosure controls and procedures (dinei@ in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for
the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controlspandedures, or caused such disclosure controlprameédures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others withdse
entities, particularly during the period in whidtigt quarterly report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal contvek dinancial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfie reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial statements for externappees
in accordance with generally accepted accountingipies;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of thésteant's disclosure controls and procedures aesipited in this quarterly report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumrelis quarterly report based on such evaluatiod,

(d) disclosed in this quarterly report amange in the registrant’s internal control ovaaficial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrigts fourth quarter in the case of an annualn@ploat has materially affected, or is reasondikBly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyin§iadr and | have disclosed, based on our most tesgruation of internal control over financial cefing, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfebeoregistrant’s board of directors (or persoadqgrming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and matkeweaknesses in the design or operation of iaterontrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and itefpmancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not materiahttimvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2014
Is/ Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly remortForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quartexport does not contain any untrue statementnadizrial fact or omit to state a material fact 1ssagy to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nietaaliisg with respect to the period covered by this
quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information incthidethis quarterly report, fairly present in alatarial
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, andtifie periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifyingicgf and | are responsible for establishing anchtaaiing disclosure controls and procedures (aseigfin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definledExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for
the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controlspandedures, or caused such disclosure controlprmeédures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others withdse
entities, particularly during the period in whidtigt quarterly report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal contvek dinancial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfie reliability of financial reporting and tpeeparation of financial statements for externappees
in accordance with generally accepted accountingiples ;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of thésteant's disclosure controls and procedures aesipited in this quarterly report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coumrelis quarterly report based on such evaluatiod;

(d) disclosed in this quarterly report amange in the registrant’s internal control oweamcial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annualn@ploat has materially affected, or is reasondikbly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifyin§iadr and | have disclosed, based on our most tesgruation of internal control over financial cefing, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfebeoregistrant’s board of directors (or persoadqrming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and matkeweaknesses in the design or operation of iaterontrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidteaability to record, process, summarize and iefpmancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not materiahttimvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2014
s/ Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landearforation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 23, 2014 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), |, Gary T. Steele, CHErecutive Officer and President of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200&;

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrgrements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timarcial condition and result of operations of @@mpany.

Date: March 28, 2014

/sl Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steele

Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishedley pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-O&ketyof 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of

Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United St&ede) and is not being filed as part of the Fo@¥Qlor as a separate disclosure
document.



Exhibit 32.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landewrfidration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 23, 2014 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), |, Gregory S. Skinnéce President of Finance and Adminstration and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursugh®@s of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrgrements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timafcial condition and result of operations of @@mpany.

Date: March 28, 2014

/s/ Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnishedley pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-O&ketyof 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of
Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United St&ede) and is not being filed as part of the Fo@¥Qlor as a separate disclosure
document.



